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* The IQOF Bu11d1ng is in its original location on North Main Street in Ashland, in an
commonly referred to as “The Plaza". ‘It is an eclectic style, built of locally
qua rried, clay bricks laid 1n a "common bond" pattern. The building is two stories high
and its dimensions are 63'x60'x35'. Two small additions in the rear extend the depth in
one place to 76'. The bottom floor of the IOOF Building is divided into three stores.
One business space is 21 feet wide, another 27 feet wide, and the third is 17' wide.

The upper floor (the portion retained by the Oddfellows) is divided into a large hall
32x60 feet and the rest is made up of ante-rooms and a large kitchen.

The upper portion of the facade is basically unchanged. The upper windows are four-
over-four 1ights with both parts moving. The cornice detail remains unchanged from the
original. There are portions of the brick coping around the top of the building intact.
Metal finials have been added to- the "parapets" on the facade. One is missing. The facade
of the building has been painted. This was done earlier in the century, and the paint has
faded considerably. The sides and the rear of the building remain unpainted.

Originally, a wood awning hung from just below the upper windows A metal awning is
now suspended from metal cab1es.

The lower portion of the facade has been remodeled The bricks have been covered with
stucco and the columns are still visible inside some of the stores. The arches have been
partially filled. The spandrel of the arch was glass, and is now solid. The windows are
now a mixture of styles. One store has sliding plate windows, another divided into 16
p?nes. The windows were originally two-over-two in the Tower floor with the spandrel area
glass,

There are a few missing bricks on the left arch detail (facing the building). On the
right hand side, facing the building, the arches were removed and an iron brace put in for
support.

On the east side of the building, a window has been added In 1969 a building was
demolished which closely joined the IQOF Building, thus accounting for the good condition
of the bricks on that side. At the rear of the building, two concrete block additions have
been added. One 1s used a5 a tea room at a gift shop. They are small and do not extend
above the height of the building. The interiors of the three stores have.been. modernized.
Their shapes and sizes have not been changed, but wall boards, and painting have altered
them. The upper floor has retained its room arrangements w1th some alteration;: a kitchen
has been tnstalled in the upper left portion of the building, and a large ante-room has had
its ceiling lowered. The large hall retains its original high ceiling. .

The building is in good condition and retains its position of 1mportance on Ashland s
Plaza. Photographs are included to demonstrate its place in a group of commercial and
civic buildings. The IOOF structure itself is one of two buildings in the row which retain
much of their ortginal character. The changes are not irreversible, should the owner- choose
to pursue a restoration project. The uses of the building remain constant. -'It was built

by three merchants and the IOOF and it has remained in such use for 97 years. It is one
of the two oldest commercial buildings in Ashland, It stands on the Plaza which forms the
- heart of Ashland. The building next to the I00F was torn down for a Lithia Park extension:
in 1969. The environment of the building to the rear has changed from a mi1l flume to a
part of the park. People of Ashland, visitors and res1dents, now enjoy the re-landscaped

extengton; picnic.there and visit the shops which epen onto the Park Extension.

~ The 1ntegr1ty of the site of the IOOF Building is intact, both in its function and
use,.and the continued consideration of "The Plaza" as the heart of the community.
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Finally, on May 28, 1880, the Tidings read:
"Three handsome offices in the front of the I00F building are now for rent."
Three years later, A.L. Walling described the building:

"A fine building, Oddfellows hall has been constructed at a cost of
$6000.00; The records having been buyned, it is impossible to give
any portion of the lodge's history."

Since 1880, the 0ddfellows and Merchant's Building has been in use as a Fraternal

Hall above, and stores below. The historical significance of the building, and its
certral position in the center of our community make it an important structure both
visually and functionally. It joins other old buildings in its row, but none, except
possibly the former Bank of Ashland, retain interesting architectural structure and
detail. Its physical appearance and condition is good; the owner intends to improve
its condition, and keep it available for people to see. The upper floor will be
opened to the public for the first time. Photographs are included to visually

‘demonstrate both the building's retention of historic character and its vital position
in a critical line of buildings on Ashland's Plaza.

1 Walling, A.G. A History of Southern Oregon, Comprising Jackson, Josephine,

Douglas, Curry and Coos Counties. Portland: Walling, 1884. P. 360.
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The areas of significance applicable to the IQOF Building in Ashland are its archi-
tecture; the building has an eclectic style common in small western towns during the middle
to Tate 19th century. It is locally designed, built of local clay brick, and was construc-
ted by Tocal bricklayers. Commerce and its influence in Ashland during the period 1880 to
the current date has roots in the IOOF Building. The lower half of the structure has been
in continual use by local merchants since the beginning. Out of the shops have come food,
clothing, shoes, hardware, the mail, and these commodities still are important to the ‘
community. Entertainment (other) has culturally been important in Ashland throughout the
years. Like many western towns, fraternal organizations, along with the churches, provided
the primary social outlet. The IQOF building was built by the merchants and the Oddfellows.
Until this spring it has been in continual use by the Oddfellows. The Ashland Lodge joined
with the Jacksonville Lodge. In these three areas the IOOF building has retained its his-
toric integrity and continued to reflect the socio-economic characteristics of Ashland.

The IOOF Building is being nominated because it, of all Ashland's commercial buildings.
has maintained its architectural integrity, and its integrity of use; as a vital part of
Ashland's economic life. It has proven to be suited in every way to the uses to which it
has been put and shows every promise of continuing to do so.

The IOOF Building was constructed in late 1879 and finished in 1880. On March 4, 1879,
a disastrous fire, which started in a blacksmith shop on the Plaza destroyed most of the
buildings in the area. Photographs are included of this pre-fire period. The building
owned by the IOOF and Fountain, Farlow, Inow and Helman was one that burned. The Ashland
Daily Tidings, July 18, 1879 carried the following article: -

"At a meeting of Ashland Lodge #45, I0OF, last Saturday evening it was decided
that the Lodge should unite with Fountain and Farlow, Inlow and Helman in the
erection of a brick building on Main Street upon the site of the burned store
and hall building of Helman and Fountain. The gentlemen we have named have been-
intending to put up a one-story building and the Lodge decided to build the
second floor. From a plan we have seen which is probably about what will be
adopted, we take the following particulars; The building will be 61 ft. front
by 60' deep. The lower story to be divided into 2 stores and the post office.
The upper story will contain a Lodge room about 28x50', two capacious ante-
rooms, and three large offices for rent. A committee has been appointed by
the lodge to make arrangements for commencing as soon as possible." ot

The issue dated September 19, 1879 read:

. "The foundation of the Oddfellows and Merchant's building is complete. It is
finished and ready for the brick-work." o - o

Various issues from September, 1879 thbough next Aprii,describe weather problemSQ'a?
mistake on the facade, which meant re-building, and lack of lime.
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